
SITE PLAN AND ARCHITECTURAL 
REVIEW COMMITTEE SPECIAL MEETING  

CARNEGIE FORUM, 305 WEST PINE STREET 
MONDAY, OCTOBER 6, 2008 

MINUTES 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL 
 
The Regular Site Plan and Architectural Review Committee meeting of October 
6, 2008, was called to order by acting Chair Kiser at 5:15 p.m. 

 Present:  Committee Members – Slater, Stafford and acting Chair Kiser. 

 Absent:   Committee Members – Reyes and Selleseth. 

 Also Present:   Community Development Director and Assistant Planner Bereket.  
 
2. MINUTES 
 

a) July 21, 2008 minutes approved, motion by Kiser, second by Stafford. 
  

3. REVIEW ITEMS 
 

a) Request for Site Plan and Architectural Review Committee approval to 
construct a Café and Deli Building at 730 South Cherokee Lane. 

 
Mr. Bereket presented and briefly described the design features of the 
building and the general site layout as well as the history of the project. 
Mr. Bereket stated that the applicant and his architect have been talking 
with City staff regarding various options and the best way to develop this 
parcel. The applicant’s original plan requested a retail store of 2,800 sq. 
ft. and 11 standard parking stalls. Mr. Bereket indicated that City staff 
expressed concerns relating to the parking stall dimensions and width 
and location of a proposed driveway off Hale Rd.  To address City staff 
concerns, Mr. Bereket indicated that the applicant revised the site plan. 
The revised  plan changed the use to  a convenience store with gas 
pumps. City staff again expressed concerns regarding the proposed 
driveway off Hale Rd, site circulation and whether or not the site was 
appropriate for a project of this size. The applicant  revised the site plan 
and the revised site plan was reviewed by the Planning Commission on 
November 28, 2007. Mr. Bereket indicated the Commission was not 
satisfied with the revised site plan and asked the applicant to again revise 
his site plan to better fulfill City development standards, to provide 
additional landscape treatment, and to address parking and internal 
circulation concerns. Mr. Bereket indicated that the applicant’s revised 
request was reviewed again by the Planning Commission on April 2008, 
at which time the commission felt the site was too small for the proposed 
use and denied the applicant’s request. The applicant has now revised  
the project  plan once again and is now proposing a small café and deli. 
 
After a brief background report, Mr. Bereket described the proposed 
building and site layout. Mr. Bereket pointed out the proposed commercial 



building will measure 2,400 sq. ft. in size.  He indicated that the project 
meets the City’s parking  requirements. Architecturally, the building has a 
festive southwest  style. The building is designed with the entryway on the 
southern elevation. The western elevation (facing Cherokee Lane) 
includes several architectural features to add interest to the building. 
  
After staff’s presentation, the Committee asked a few questions about the 
project.  SPARC Member Stafford expressed a concern regarding the 
variety of colors proposed on the top 2 feet of the exterior walls. The 
project architect stated that the actual colors aren’t exactly as  shown on 
the overhead. The applicant handed SPARC color and material pallet to 
member Slater. SPARC member Slater pointed out the actual pictures 
are not as bright as appear on the staff report attachment and states 
these colors would be acceptable to the neighborhood. Planning 
Commission Member Kiser expressed his support  of the project. He 
pointed out that the building is smaller then on earlier versions and that it 
met all City requirements and development standards. Member Kiser 
asked if the landscaping and the site lay out will remain the same. The 
applicant indicated the site layout and the landscape plan will remain the 
same and only the building will be demolished and rebuilt.  
 
MOTION / VOTE: 
SPARC, on motion of Member Kiser, second by Member Slater, approved 
the proposed Café and Deli Building at 730 South Cherokee Lane, 
subject to Common SPARC Conditions and Supplemental Conditions.  

 
The vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes:   Slater, Stafford and acting Chair Kiser.  
Noes:   None.   
Absent: Reyes and Chair Selleseth. 
 

b) Review a proposed chapel addition to the First Baptist Church of Lodi, 
located at 267 North Mills Avenue. 

 
Mr. Bereket made a brief presentation based on staff report. He stated 
the applicant was granted a Conditional Use Permit and site plan and 
architectural approval by the Planning Commission a couple of years ago.  
The church had always proposed to develop their site in  two phases.  
The main worship center and class rooms were constructed as the first 
phase and the proposed  chapel project is  part of the  second phase. He 
pointed out the proposed addition will be on the north east corner of the 
existing worship center building in an area that is currently landscaping. 
The proposed structure is a single story addition that measures 3,059 sq. 
ft. of building area and is attached to the existing worship center building. 
Mr. Bereket stated that the proposed exterior architectural finish will be 
identical to the existing church buildings, including materials, colors, 
landscaping and lighting. The existing parking layout will not be altered. 
He stated that some landscaping will be removed to accommodate the 



proposed addition and the landscaping removed will be replaced with new 
landscaping spread throughout the parcel. 
 
After staff’s presentation, the project architect, Mr. Larry Wenell, spoke 
and pointed out the color rendering being presented was slightly different 
from what the actual project proposal calls. He pointed out the exterior 
façade of the proposed building is similar to what exists on the existing 
buildings and the use of new elements compliments the entire structure. 
Mr. Kiser asked if landscaping will be reduced in size. Mr. Wenell 
answered that the proposed addition removes some shrubs, ground 
covers and other plantings to accommodate the chapel but additional 
landscaping  would be replanted across other areas of the property. Mr. 
Stafford expressed his support  of the building’s design. In particular, he 
expressed his appreciation how the building is oriented with an angle to 
the street; with no building elevation parallel to Mills Avenue. Mr. Stafford 
stated rather than seeing one continuous wall of the building from the 
street, the new addition will provide a street view of both a 2-story and a 
single story section of wall. 
 
MOTION / VOTE: 
SPARC, on motion of Member Stafford, second by Member Slater, 
approved the proposed additions to the First Baptist Church of Lodi, 
located at 267 North Mills Avenue, subject to Common SPARC 
Conditions and Supplemental Conditions.  

 
The vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes:   Slater, Stafford and acting Chair Kiser.  
Noes:   None.   
Absent: Reyes and Chair Selleseth. 
 

 
4. ADJOURNMENT 

 
There being no further business to come before the Site Plan and Architectural 
Review Committee, the meeting was adjourned at 6:15 p.m. 

 


